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The church is a plain, one-room frame structure set upon a concrete foundation, 
dimensions 36' x 50', A centered door is at the front. Four tall, narrow 
stained-glass windows are on each side. The only ornamentation is a steeple 
set upon a square base, with hexagonal drum and roof (the spire was removed 
after damage by a storm). The church roof is covered with composition shingles,

The wood floors, wainscoating, and other furniture are original. Interior 
modifications have been limited to repapering, laying of carpet, and the 
installation of modern lighting. The interior and exterior are in excellent 
condition.

The church stands on the crest of a semi-wooded hill in a rural farm area, 
overlooking a small creek. It is flanked by a small cemetery, which was 
first used in 1851 and is still used today for the burial of the descendants 
of the early Welsh settlers.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This simple, rural church derives significance from its place (then and now) 
in the ethnic heritage of a particular group of people. In the late 1830's, 
a group of Welsh migrated from Pennsylvania to southeastern Iowa, and built a 
settlement along "Old Man's Creek." They founded their Welsh Congregational 
Church in 1846, The first church was built in 1856; over the next decades, 
more Welsh arrived to take advantage of coal mining operations in the area, and 
in response, the congregation replaced their early church with the present 
structure.

The Welsh Church operated regularly until 1954, closing only because there 
were too few people to maintain it. The remaining members, however, arranged 
with the Welsh Missionary Society in Iowa to hold services in the church once 
a year. In 1963, active measures were taken to reestablish the church as a 
."working" congregation. Today, services are held frequently, as are various 
social events which reflect the long tradition of Welsh culture in Iowa.

This particular Welsh church is the mother church of two other long-established 
congregations in Iowa. The first, founded in 1849, is in Iowa City. The 
second, in Williamsburg, was the result of a dispute over the use of Welsh or 
English during services. The advocates of English- led by Owen Evans, removed 
to Williamsburg around 1860. Both of these churches are still active.

In very important ways, the Welsh Church at Old Man's Creek has since its 
founding served the cultural, as well as the religious needs of its congre­ 
gation. For over 50 years, the church was the site of the "Gymanfa," an annual 
meeting of the Welsh Congregational Church Association. Circuit preachers 
came from Welsh communities in Pennsylvania, Ohio, arid sometimes from Wales, 
to exhort the crowds to a revivalistic fervor (for which the Welsh had a name, 
"hywl," or "uncontrollable enthusiasm"). The Gymanfa was revived in 1970, 
as part of the church's centennial celebration.

Less spiritual, but no less culturally important, was the "Eisteddfod" (literally, 
a "singing" or "session"), a yearly expression of the rich musical tradition of 
the Welsh and their descendants. This gathering, originally of bands and musi­ 
cians who competed in oratory, poetry, and musical contests, was only slightly 
modified in transplantation to America. A variety of choral groups (men, women, 
mixed, quartets, octets, etc.) assembled at this church, and specialized in 
religious works by Handel, Haydn, and Mozart. The "hywl" generated by these 
performances contributed to those feeling of ethnic solidarity so important to 
newcomers to a strange land.
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